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PREFACE

Background to the Study

This report has been prepared by Donald Insall dates Ltd on behalf of Wirral Council. Its
purpose is to clarify the designation of the Covesson Area, which will protect and enhance the
character of the historic core of Bromborough \géa

Scope and Structure of the Study

The scope of this Conservation Area Appraisal armthdgement Plan is based on the guidelines
published by English Heritage (‘Guidance on Coretom Area Appraisals’ and ‘Guidance on the
Management of Conservation Areas’, both dated Fepra006) and represents a factual and
objective analysis. In accordance with the guigdj the following framework has been used as
the basis for this analysis:-

= Location and population

= Origins and development of the settlement

» Prevailing or former uses and their influence angbrm or building type
= Archaeological significance

= Architectural and historic qualities of buildings

= Contribution made by key unlisted buildings

= Character and relationship of spaces

» Prevalent and traditional building materials

» Local details

= Contribution made by green spaces, trees, hedges, e

= Setting of the Conservation Area and its relatignslith the surrounding landscape
= Extent of loss, intrusion or damage

= Existence of any neutral areas

The document has been structured to encompass #reas of study and concludes with
recommendations for the Conservation Area boundad/ other matters such as provision of
Article 4 Directions.

Existing Designations, Legal Framework for Conserviion Areas and the Powers of the
Local Authority

Since the 1967 Civic Amenities Act local authostibave been empowered to designate as
Conservation Areas those areas within their distrigshich were considered 'special’. The
subsequent Planning (Listed Buildings and Consenvaireas) Act of 1990 consolidated those
powers and defined Conservation Areas as:-

"areas of special architectural or historic interé® character or appearance of which it is
desirable to preserve or enhance".

Such areas are diverse. They may be large or ;smesidential or commercial; civic or
industrial; old or relatively modern. They may megent social ideals or civic pride. They may
be specifically designed or speculatively produgeddest or grand. They may contain Listed
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Buildings of architectural or historic interest oray simply have local historic association.
However, common to all will be an identifiable emrimental quality which should be protected
from unsympathetic redevelopment or alteration.

Wirral Council has declared 25 Conservation Aréasughout the Borough reflecting the variety
of building styles and environments exhibited witkis borders.

The content of the Planning (Listed Buildings armh§ervation Areas) Act 1990 is clarified by
national Planning Policy Guidance (PPG15): Planramgl the Historic Environment and is
supported by more recent Regional Planning Guiddacdghe North West (RPG13), which
identifies as a key objective the need to ensutigeamanagement of the regions environmental
and cultural assets.

The principles of these documents are further sipgoby Wirral Council’s local Heritage
Conservation policies contained within its Unit&rgvelopment Plan.

This legislation and policy framework enables theharity to exercise greater control over
development within Conservation Areas and, whemg@piate, this may be supplemented by
the use of 'Article 4 Directions' to remove pergedttdevelopment rights. In this way, minor
changes, such as window replacement or loft comwess which may be cumulatively
detrimental, can be controlled.

National policy stipulates that local authoritiesvh a duty to review, from time to time, their
regions to ensure that places of special architaictur historic interest are being protected. The
boundaries of existing Conservation Areas may ésed, new areas may be designated and
those areas which have been eroded to the extrthisir special character has been lost may be
de-designated.

Whilst the Council recognises that, for Conservatikseas to remain ‘live’ and responsive to a
changing society, changes must and will occur,exentheless undertakes to ensure that all
changes make a positive contribution to the charaamtd appearance of its Conservation Areas
and do not result in any serious loss of charamtéeatures.

Planning legislation supports the authority in thysincreasing its control over development. It
does this in the following ways:

» Buildings and structures may not be demolishedawittiormal consent from the Council
(Conservation Area Consent).

» Trees are protected and all work to them requibesent from the Council.

= New development is expected to reflect the qualitydesign and construction of the
surrounding area and should make a positive caniito to the area's character.

= Local planning authorities may, if necessary, @gereven greater control by removing the
basic permitted development rights of householders.

»= Under section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildiaggl Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the
Council has a legal obligation to ensure that "mpeattention shall be paid to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the chamadr appearance” of the area when
formulating decisions on planning applications.

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page ii
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The first step to protecting the inherent qualitidsa Conservation Area is having a thorough
understanding of its character and Planning P@laidance PPG15 advises that "the definition
of an area's special interest should derive fronassessment of the elements that contribute to
(and detract from) it".

This should then underpin local policies for theaar protection. Such a definition requires a
thorough appraisal of the area to assess the bottm of each element (e.g. buildings,
boundaries, trees, surfaces, etc.) to the areamlbwbkaracter. PPG15 notes that "the more
clearly the special architectural or historic ietr that justifies designation is defined and
recorded; the sounder will be the basis for locklnppolicies and development control
decisions".

Whilst an appraisal aims to identify the esserglaments which give an area its character, it is
not intended as a detailed evaluation of each imgjlénd feature. Therefore any buildings,

features and details may still have importance ehenigh not specifically referred to in the

document and any omissions do not indicate lackexit or interest.

In undertaking this conservation area appraisas, la@s been estimated on the basis of visual
inspections from public areas only, map eviden&&%b Mainwaring Estate Map, 1840 Tithe map,
OS maps from 1876, 1899, 1911, 1936 and the pdeaadtthe 2002 publication by Stephen J
Roberts A History of Wirral

Many buildings have been altered considerably twes and would require detailed study to fully
interpret. The dates provided in the gazetteeessnbtherwise stated, are approximate and relate to
the original phase of construction or if that carp® determined the most prominent parts. Unless
clear documentary evidence is referred to, theogsrascribed to buildings should not be regarded
as definitive. Where the original period of constion has been estimated, fabric from earlier
periods may exist. This is particularly true of naular buildings in ancient settlements where
building facades can have been successively refeddahd roofs changed, for example from
thatch to slate. Date stones cannot always balrepen as they could have been incorporated into
substantial rebuilding or mark an important evelchsas a marriage or change of ownership.

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page iii
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PART 1 — CONSERVATIONAREA APPRAISAL

1.0 L OCATION
1.1 GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION

1.1.1 The Wirral Peninsula is a roughly rectangular aveapproximately 70 square miles
lying between the River Dee and the River MersByomborough lies on the eastern
side of the peninsula, one mile inland from theKsaof the Mersey, and roughly
equidistant from the settlements of BromboroughlPBastham and Raby Mere, and
4.5 miles south-east of the town of Birkenhead. $&evice industry forms the largest
sector of the local economy, employing 69% of alirkers (in 2001), and this is
reflected in the large areas of commercial andstréal sites particularly along the east
coast.

1.1.2 The settlement of Bromborough straddles New Chd’texd (A41), with the village
and its surrounding residential areas lying towlest and a commercial/industrial area
to the east.

1.1.3 The Bromborough Village Conservation Area centreshe historic core of the village,
which includes the church of St Barnabas. The emasion area abuts parts of
Bromborough Village Road to the east, a predomipaaimmercial area, and The Rake
to the south, which has a mix of residential anchmercial property. Outside the
conservation area to the west and the north amnsxie residential areas of largely
20"century dwellings.

own copyrig ht All right; sgjre;;f'erv ed
03). (published 2009).

\ 2

U (icence number 1000198

Map showing conservation
area boundary
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1.15

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.3

13.1

1.4

14.1

Bromborough is a fairly densely populated suburkettiement, which has expanded in
all directions from its historic centre. It is ooka number of similar settlements lying

alongside the route of the A41, running from Birkead to Eastham in the south and on
to Chester and beyond. Towns and villages aloegetistern coast of the peninsula
have extended and coalesced as a result of urbatogenent and expansion of the

commuter belt.

The residential and commercial areas surrounding Bromborough Village
Conservation Area are laid out in a variety of plarms suggesting planned suburbs:
some have a series of crescent-shaped roads, senred triangular formation and
others are set out in a grid. However, none oflalgeuts has a strong north-south or
east-west orientation. In contrast to these faldpsely packed areas, the conservation
area in the centre has a good proportion of opanesgparticularly around the church,
and the dwellings are set in more generous plots.

TOPOGRAPHY AND GEOLOGY

The Wirral peninsula is a low lying undulating plaiinterspersed with wooded
sandstone ridges, the highest point at Poll HillHeswall being a little over 100m
above sea level. The peninsula is formed of Keaper Bunter sandstones and marls
belonging to the Triassic formation, with a smataaof Carboniferous sandstone near
Neston. The sandstones are generally hidden uswgegrficial glacial deposits of
boulder clay.

The settlement of Bromborough lies within a genilydulating landscape, varying

between approximately 27m and 32m above sea |&wekthe west is a deep cutting for
the Chester to Liverpool railway line, beyond whilkes the pastoral landscape of
central Wirral. Bromborough, as a settlement wtanobloses the village, is bounded to
the north and south by other suburban settlemertsaathe east by the Wirral Business
Park. Views into and from the conservation aredhim centre are therefore largely
obscured by buildings.

GENERAL USAGE

The boundary of the conservation area is approxin®&70m (0.6 miles) long, within
which lies a mix of residential, commercial and lpubuildings. There are around a
dozen residential properties, which are predomipamtodest detached and semi-
detached cottages with the exception of Church Blo@hurch Cottage and the
Master's House. There is a mix of commercial pea®sj including banks, shops,
restaurants and offices. The area includes thechhaf St Barnabas and associated
buildings such as the Village Centre (formerly kool and master’'s house) and two
community halls.

CONSERVATION AREA BOUNDARY AND STATUTORY DESIGNATIONS

Bromborough Village was designated as a conservaitiea in July 1982 and maintains
its original boundary. The conservation area idekithe churchyard and much of the
historic core of the village.

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 2
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1.4.2

1.4.3

144

To the north the boundary runs from the west althggline of the wall and mature
hedgerow separating the Rectory garden from thechlyard, continuing eastwards
along the southern edge of the bowling green themgathe south side of a vehicular
access point between No 8 (Christopher Hall's BaBjep) and Nos 12-16 (Valatech
Computers).

The building housing Valach Computer
(Nos 1216 Bromborough Village Roal
marks the nortreastern corner of th
conservation area, the boundary runni
immediately tothe left of the Wearin
Builders Services sign

The eastern boundary follows Bromborough Villagea&southwards from Nos 12-16
to its junction with The Rake (at No 58). Howewens 36-46, a group of Zecentury
buildings housing Bromborough Paint and Buildingpflies, are excluded from the
conservation area.

The boundary runs along the edge of the car pajacaht to No 52 Bromborough Village Road (Village
Road Laundrette, left), behind Nos 36-46 (centxe|ugled from the conservation area) and re-emerges
along the pathway adjacent to Nos 32-34 (Bhuludbami, right)

The southern boundary extends westwards along Hhe B just beyond its junction

with Allport Lane, and then runs northwards fohars distance along the plot boundary
of No 22 The Rake, where it turns eastwards aridvisl the plot boundaries of Nos 20
to No 2 The Rake before joining the westernmosndauy of the churchyard.

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 3
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1.4.5 There are six listed buildings and structures withie conservation area:

54/56/56a Bromborough Village Road (west side) @rad

Church of St Barnabas Grade II*

Cross, St Barnabas Church grounds Grade Il
Pear Tree Cottage, 6 The Rake (north side) Grade Il
School and Master’s House, Church Lane Grade Il
Sundial, St Barnabas Church grounds Grade Il

The cross is also a Scheduled Monument (No 1111138)

A number of trees within the curtilage of the churare protected by
individual Tree Preservation Orders in additiorthte protection afforded by
their being within a conservation area.

1.4.6  In the immediate vicinity of the conservation aaee the 18-century Market
Cross near Allport Lane (Grade II*), the ™®entury milestone on
Bromborough Village Road (Grade Il) and Stanhopeaud¢p Mark Rake
(listed Grade Il along with the wall to its grouipds

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 4
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2.0 HISTORICAL DEVELOPMENT
2.1 EARLY HISTORY AND ORIGINS OF SURROUNDING AREA
Prehistoric

2.1.1 Although there is evidence of human occupation imr&/since Mesolithic
times, particularly in the north, the earliest eride of human activity at
Bromborough comes much later in the form of a Newlileaf-shaped flint
arrow head, discovered near what is now 9 CroftelLdoutside the
conservation area boundary).

Pre Norman Conquest

2.1.2 The name Bromborough is Anglo-Saxon in origin, niegn‘Bruna’s
fortified place’ (from the Anglo-Saxon personal reandburh). Whether it
was an entirely new settlement or the continuatiban earlier settlement is
unclear. However, a Domitian coin found in 190@ anVespasian Coin
found in 1936 both might suggest the area was dedup the i' century
AD by the Romans. The circular form of the oridgirBromborough
churczlyard also indicates the area was settledrddfte Anglo-Saxons
arrived.

2.1.3 There is evidence to suggest the Wirral was coémhisy the exiled Norse
people after they fled Dublin in AD962 Indeed, “there are 600 possible
examples of Norse names in Wirral — townships, bara lost settlements,
field and road names.” The Rake and Mark Rake derive their names from
rak (‘lane’) and Wood Clints and The Clints are detimas of klint
(‘projecting rock’). It may be however that thesemenclatures were not
assigned by the Viking settlers, but through thepéidn of Norse words by
successor Anglo-Saxon generations to describe quslyi unknown
conceptd Although there was Norse influence locally, Bmrough was
outside the initial Norse settlement area.

2.1.4 Further evidence of the Norse occupation of Brombgh and other
settlements such as Hilbre, West Kirby and Wallasey the discovery of
heads and shafts of stone crosses, intricatelyedaand decorated by the
settlers as symbols of their prosperity. During demolition of the church at
Bromborough in 1863, fragments of such a cross @nad incorporated
into the building. Recently reassembled, the crngssow a Scheduled
Monument (No 1111138) and is a typical West Chestasign with some
Norse influence. It sits near the south door @& fghresent church in a
prominent location.

! Roberts, Stephen J (2008)History of Wirral[Phillimore & Co Ltd, Chichester], p51
2 Ibid, p55

® |bid, p56

* Ibid, pp56-7
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2.1.5 Tradition has suggested that Ethelfleda (or Aekhedf), the Countess of
Mercia and daughter of Alfred the Great, foundedmmnastery at
Bromborough (“Brimesburgh” or “Bremesburh”) in abd@L2AD although
this was demolished prior to the Norman Conduebtowever, recent place
name research suggests that Bromesberrow or Bremesb(both in North
Gloucestershire) are more likely to have beenitee s

2.1.6 The Anglo-Saxon Chronicleof 937 included verses on the “Battle of
Brunanburh”, recounting an invasion of England ly Scots and the Danes
of Ireland, which ended in their slaughter by Agtteh and his brother
Edmund. The exact location of Brunanburh is notvkmcand has been
subject to much academic debate; one argumentaisitthis present-day
Bromborough.

2.1.7 The early plan form of Bromborough Village settlerhas difficult to
determine but it is likely to have centred aroum@ tSaxon church or
monastery (to the north east of the present churlearby land would have
been cultivated for crops and the stream may haea Imanaged to provide
fish ponds.

Medieval

2.1.8  The most significant find from the medieval perisda 14"-century coin
found in 1958 near the site of the chancel of thgo8 church (SMR Ref
3482-028). Although Bromborough Village is not rened in the
Domesday Book, but is believed to have been theeeh “Estham” Manor
Indeed, Bromborough had a priest but there washuwch in Eastham in
1086 so it seems Eastham manor lay within Brombgirqaarish.

2.1.9 Although Bromborough was the centre of a large enei parish with a
number of roads converging on it, its present histoore belies its status.
The settlement grew up around the church in a dgugletangular form, but
with the area to the west remaining as meadow laithe surrounding
landscape was given over to agriculture and gramngnimals.

2.1.10 By 1153 Eastham and Bromborough had become sepaaters; at his
death in 1153, Ranulph de Gernon, Earl of Cheshenitted that he had done
great harm to the Abbey and offered in compensdtierivaluable manors of
Eastham and BromboroughThere is field evidence of the existence of a
moated monastic grange and court to the north aagromborough Pool.
The first was burnt down in 1284, according to arlye chronicle the
“Annales Cestriensis” and the second one was luiltthe same rather
remote spot at the northern end of the township.

® From: 'Brockhampton - Bromeholme', A Topographidattionary of England (1848), pp. 392-395.
URL: http://www.british-history.ac.uk/report.aspxdapid=50833. Date accessed: 25 January 2008.
6 From: 'Houses of Benedictine monks: The abbeyiafster’', A History of the County of Chester:
Volume 3 (1980), pp. 132-146. URL: http://www.bshi
history.ac.uk/report.aspx?compid=39975&strquery=Mairing Bromborough. Date accessed: 25
January 2008.

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 6
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2.1.11 Edward I is known to have visited Bromborough ofeast two occasions, in
1277 and 1283, as part of a tour of the regionuster support for his Welsh
campaigns. In February 1278, Edward | granted dyaRCharter the right of
the Abbey of Chester to hold in Bromborough a weekbrket and annual
three-day fair in June. This was an importantdadéh improving the
economic prosperity of the settlement and was éurédded to by the Abbot
bringing 140 acres of waste ground in Irby, GreasBsomborough and
Plymyard under the plough by the 1290s.

2.1.12 Economic prosperity and subsequent expansion obé¢tidement seems to
have continued until the arrival of the Black Death1349, which left
between 20% and 50% of the population dead. Bytihme, the Abbey of
Chester had become increasingly powerful and owneahy manors,
including lands and rents in Bromborough, BebingtBastham, and the
monastic grange of Plymyard within Eastham township

2.1.13 The Hundred of Wirral had been a Royal Forest sagice20 but on 20 July
1376 Edward lll granted a Charter of Disafforestatafter much petitioning
by the people, although this did not immediatelyt ithe tradition of
extortion enjoyed by gentry families such as thanflys. It did mean
however that the villagers could once again usédmfor buildings and this
may have marked a period of rebuilding and expansieer subsequent
decades.

Post medieval

2.1.14 The years 1509 to 1547 were marked by a huge uphgathe English way
of life under Henry VIIl, who changed the country&igion and introduced
new forms of local and national government. Theaot of these reforms
was widely felt, particularly in settlements thaadhgrown up around
monasteries and Abbeys. After the dissolution aff&/s monasteries in the
1530s, the government confiscated all monasticdamdl properties and sold
them on to secular landlords. The manor of Brombgh was thus owned
by one John Gryce until December 1548, when heyaadihis rights to Sir
Rowland Stanley of Hootdna member of a powerful gentry family.

2.1.15 During the 18 and 17" centuries it seems the population remained fairly
constant with parish records recording 63 househ@add1563 and 54 in
1664.

2.1.16 The Manor House was built some time before 1638eajunction of Allport
Lane and The Rake (its datestone of 1676 probahhksra rebuilding) On
the opposite side of Allport Lane stood The RoyakOreputedly one of
Wirral’'s oldest public houses dating back to theetiof Charles | (although
tithe map evidence does not support this).

" Roberts, op cit, p93
8|t can be seen in photographs from 1925 but wamtished and replaced by shops in 1929.

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 7
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2.1.17 In 1638 the new Bromborough Hall was erected arddahmer Manor House
may have become Manor House Farm. The Hall eviyptcame into the
hands of the Mainwaring family (later Lords of Brbamough). The Hall had
extensive grounds, with a long boundary wall rugrafong the eastern side
of what is now Bromborough Village Road.

2.1.18 The earliest extant house (Nos 54/56/56a Brombdrovidjage Road —
Tellett’s Farm) within the conservation area bougdtates from the late 17
century; archaeological investigation could possibétermine whether this
and later houses were built on the sites of medtlebvallings.

2.1.19 Throughout the 18 17" and 18' centuries Bromborough remained a rural
settlement. Landowners and prosperous tenant farlived comparatively
comfortable lives, and housed most of the remaipogulation as workers
or servants, either within their own householdroséparate small cottages.
The ‘lower classes’ received little pay, but weretpcted from destitution by
living as part of their masters’ extended familiefApart from agriculture,
seafaring was an important part of the local econom

2.1.20 During the 18 century the church building was in decay. Thésbaseems
to have been served for periods by clergy who edsimonthly either
Bebington or Eastham. The parish register dutiegl’ and 18' centuries
is incomplete and there are periods for which ttaeeeno records at all; the
records that do exist are somewhat confused. Hemyéwe population seems
to have grown slightly from 68 households in 172080 in 1778. The
effects of the Inclosure Acts of 1750-1860 are gham an estate map of
c1755, where the lands surrounding the settlemegéar to be divided into
rectangular fields. Within the conservation argaaller enclosures held a
number of cottages and gardens. The boundariethasfe enclosures
remained substantially the same into the milil-&&ntury, although within
the Bromborough Hall estate, crofts, ancillary 8imgs and field boundaries
were removed to provide pleasure gardens, a pa&ik;teen garden and large
areas of cow pasture.

2.1.21 By 1801 the settlement had grown to 404 househdklag to 538 by 1851.
The greatest period of expansion however came githie 18' century and
by 1901 2,070 households were recorded in the sensu

2.2 19TH CENTURY DEVELOPMENT

2.2.1 Between 1801 and 1851, the settlement had growm fd®4 to 538
households. The Tithe Map of 1840 shows 359 ajpornents within
Bromborough parish, 78% of which were held by thevétend James
Mainwaring (of Bromborough Hall). Mrs Kitty Backhee and Lady
Elizabeth Murray jointly owned a little under 10%dathe remainder was
divided between 14 other people, including Sir ThenStanley Massey
Stanley.

° Roberts, op cit, p119
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2.2.2

2.2.3

2.2.4

2.2.5

2.2.6

2.2.7

2.3

23.1

By 1822, the village had a hotel, known as Mainmg\rms. Its name was
changed in 1850 to Sportsman’'s Arms and in 1896bdtame the
Bromborough Hotel (now known simply as The Bromhwgyiw).

The Saxon Church was demolished in 1828/9. Iteessor proved too small
for the increasing population and the present ¢hofcSt Barnabas was built
in 1862-4 on a site south-west of the Saxon chwithh The associated
rectory built in 1856 was demolished in 1934, amé@acement built in the
1936.

The Chester to Birkenhead Railway opened in 184f.addition, a new
turnpike road (New Chester Road) between TranmessryF and

Bromborough Village was opened in the mid to |a88s, one of Thomas
Brassey's largest local undertakings. These imgutotransport links and
increasing industrialisation marked a turning pamtthe development of
Bromborough. The river Mersey had become one ef thK’s busiest

shipping routes, which benefited villages such asniborough as wealthy
Liverpool merchants and businessmen chose to ntake homes on the
Wirral. This was the beginning of the ‘commuteltbe

In the third quarter of the Tentury, a number of new dwellings were built,
principally along Bromborough Village Road and TReke.

Bromborough National School, funded by the occumé&rBromborough
Hall, was inaugurated in 1869, replacing the eadahool on Village Road.
A farm and cottage were demolished to make waytherschool, but the
materials were re-used along with stone from tlgallquarry. Although the
school closed in 1983, the building has since foauméw use and now serves
as the Village Centre. The ‘Big Stone’ at the ante is said to be a glacial
erratic.

The Mission Hall and Reading Room, funded by Thomatheson, were
built on Village Road in 1868 to provide worshipdanrecreation facilities for
the expanding population. A number of businesseie westablished in the
village, many of which benefited from trade withosle working on the
construction of the Manchester Ship Canal, whiokneg in 1894.

20TH AND 21ST CENTURY CHANGES

By the outbreak of WWI, Bromborough had expandepidig and was
becoming less reliant on agriculture. Within tlegervation area a small
number of semi-detached and terraced cottages lgitealong The Rake.
The Church Institute was built in 1908 for Rich&tdbson in memory of his
wife, Eleanor, south of The Smithy and Smithy Cgetéwhich had been in
existence since at least c1755 and were demolisheé®82). A barn
fronting onto the market square was converted tasBoRA Roberts’s
Central Garages in 1925 and stood to the east efChurch Institute.
Murphy's Taxi Office was established next door, ahdt building still
stands.

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 9
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2.3.2 Outside the conservation area boundary, the Counglt half-timbered
offices on the west side of Allport Lane in c19Herholished in 1973 and
replaced by the Civic Hall and Library).

2.3.3 Despite the Great Depression (1929-35), the intar-period marked a
period of further expansion, with a number of buitg being demolished
and replaced.

2.3.4 The 17-century Manor House Farm was purchased by Johin BwSons,
grocers, in 1928 and was subsequently demolishédepiaced with shops,
Similarly, some buildings on the east side of Aftploane were replaced by
shops in the late 1930s. These changes emphdbkisddansition from an
agricultural, rural settlement to an increasinggmenercial and suburban
one.

2.3.5 The building of the by-pass (A41/New Chester Roadhe mid-1930s led to
the demolition of Bromborough Hall and White Rowttages (which had
stood on the east side of Bromborough Village Raxad housed workers at
the Hall). New banks were built around the markgqtuare and infill
development occurred along Bromborough Village Rogigling a more
urban feel to the streetscape. Tellet's Farmhoumesv Nos 54/56/56a
Bromborough Village Road) was renamed Allport Hoase converted for
use as a chandler’s shop by 1930, and the farrdibgd were demolished.

2.3.6 The rural landscape along Mark Rake was given ¢ogproviding semi-
detached houses for the increasing population,oacbing on the fields
surrounding the church. The plots along The Rakesveevered by a new
access lane to serve buildings at the rear (bethesrilO and 12).

2.3.7 In the latter half of the 2Dcentury, Bromborough became part of an urban
conurbation, coalescing with other settlements @ltre A41. The lands
surrounding the church were given over to housiagetbpment and the
village expanded in all directions. A number ofilthngs along
Bromborough Village Road were demolished and No$o346 built in their
place (excluded from conservation area). Terrdumdsing along the south
side of The Rake was demolished to make way failrahits, and more
shops were built along the east side of Allportd.an

2.3.8 By 1958 the Royal Oak, owned by Birkenhead Brewergs too small to
accommodate increased trade and its licence wasféraed to a new Royal
Oak across the road.

2.3.9 Hodgson’'s shop (opened ¢1885), which stood next ttmdhe Royal Oak,
was demolished to make way for an expansion of bandCounty,
Westminster and Parr’'s Bank, which had startedifieliss Glover’'s former
sweet shop on the junction of The Rake and Allparte (now NatWest).
The shops to the south were also demolished faxteansion. However, a
small number of adjacent cottages and outbuildswgsived this expansion;
shown on the 1840 tithe map, they have been adéptetew uses and still
remain today although they lie outside the cond@mwarea boundary.
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2.3.10 The market cross, which once stood in an open reghas been subsumed

2.4

24.1

2.4.2

by the widening of pavements and the consequendwing of roads. It no
longer acts as the focal point of the village asdormer importance is now
barely legible to passers-by.

ARCHAEOLOGY

The Merseyside Archaeological Service Historic Emwiment Record holds
details of 34 sites of interest relating to thetdris environment of
Bromborough, many of which are within the conseoratarea boundary.
The most significant find was a "I4entury coin found in 1958 near the site
of the chancel of the Saxon church (Ref 3482-028)e present churchyard
is believed to be the site of the Abbey foundedAiD912, which had
disappeared before the Norman conquest, althowagk th no field evidence
to support this.

The 13 -century market cross, although repaired and alténethe 19
century, is an important feature in understandimg form of the medieval
settlement. Half of the HER entries relate topbst-medieval settlement up
to 1750 and there may be potential for archaeaddgiemains from earlier
times within or near buildings dating from the nii” century and earlier.
The lack of known finds should not be interpreteddack of potential.
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3.0

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.14

L ANDSCAPE AND VISTAS
SETTING AND RELATIONSHIP WITH THE SURROUNDING AREA

The conservation area has a higher proportion @érgispace than the more
densely packed areas surrounding it.

The northern-most point of the conservation ardaoisnded by the Rectory
on Mark Rake with its large garden, providing afeubetween the Church
grounds and the residential areas further to théhnoFurther west along
Mark Rake are inter-war semi-detached dwellings, thie intervening space
to the western part of the conservation area ha® lfilled with more
recent housing development and new roads (eg AtimeGGlose).

To the west,, the conservation area
boundary runs along the edge of the
churchyard, which here is overlooked
by the modern houses on the south side
of Athelstan Close

The main vehicular approach to the village from tieth and south is
Bromborough Village Road, which adjoins the easteone of the
conservation area. It is a wide and very busyahgfare, linked to the A41
(New Chester Road) at points both north and soltheovillage.

No 10 (left) to No 2 (right, The
Bromborough public house) are the
buildings immediately adjacent to the
north-east corner of the conservation
area where it meets Bromborough
Village Road

The immediate setting to the east of the consewatrea is characterised by
a mix of residential and commercial buildings; tleea between
Bromborough Village Road and the A41 is commern@ith of High Street
and predominantly residential to the south, wittiustrial/commercial units
of the Wirral Business Park lying further east,wesn the A41 and the
banks of the Mersey.
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3.1.5

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

To the south, the conservation area includes theeasection of The Rake,
which contains the majority of its domestic dweadn Although it is a fairly
narrow road, it is well used by traffic, being oofethe main routes into the
shopping centre and car park on the south sidehef Rake (outside the
conservation area).

The Rake, viewed from the west, at its
junction with Allport Road. The
conservation area lies to the north side
(left in photograph)

The setting of the conservation area to
the south has a mix of commercial and
residential buildings lining the south
side of The Rake

Those arriving by train alight at Bromborough Rakation, on the Liverpool
to Chester Merseyrail line. The railway is in &pleutting some 0.4 miles
(0.64km) from the nearest part of the conservati@a and no glimpses of it
are afforded when travelling by train.

The pedestrian approach from the station is aldmg Hake. At its western
end are a number of roads leading off into postdwarsing developments,
with substantial green space along the southem gidto its junction with

Valley Road, and a recreation ground to the norilmereafter the housing
becomes more densely packed, in short terracasthentonservation area is
reached.

Public access to some parts of the conservatiaa iareestricted where the
boundary runs across private land or between neigig properties, as
indicated on the map below.
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/ T ,
\ - - <© Crown|copyright. All rig
“»- 7] (licence.number|100019803) (pu

tsresernved »

blishet 2009).

Map showing parts of conservation area where publicess is restricted, denoted by a
dashed red line

3.2 CHARACTER AND RELATIONSHIP OF SPACES

3.2.1 In general, the character of the conservation asea be described as a
formerly rural village of medieval origins enclosedlithin an urban
conurbation. It has a range of housing, includimgalé cottages, semi-
detached houses and larger detached houses. bhe lpuildings include a
sizeable church and former village school, andethiera range of shops and
commercial premises.
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3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

k@ 4;12 right. Al rig
nymbe{% 1 OOW (published 2009).
22l | | =T 8

I / \
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Map showing character zones within the conservadiaa

The conservation area can be broadly divided imteet zones:

Zone 1: Nos 2 to 22 The Rake, a residential aregeokrally modest
dwellings

Zone 2: the area around the Church and Village r€gerieing the
churchyard and public buildings

Zone 3: the eastern area alongside BromborougtagéllRoad, which
consists of predominantly commercial premises

Each of these areas has its own character andhigiisinter-relationship that
contributes to the character of the conservatiea as a whole.

The special interest of the area lies in its histrd development. Although
the setting of the village has changed consideralir the centuries, the
core of its historic plan form remains almost imtac

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 15



BROMBOROUGHV ILLAGE CONSERVATIONAREA APPRAISAL AND MANAGEMENT PLAN

3.25

3.2.6

/I

The historic core of the village was centred arotine earlier church and market cross as
can be seen from the location of buildings eredigcc1755 (red) and by 1840 (orange)
Note the new access to the Church and the churdhfyam the east and the residual and
truncated earlier access from the south.

Zone 1

Approaching from the west, the conservation aremimes apparent where
there is a change from short terraces of houseNded?4 to 34 The Rake) to
detached and semi-detached dwellings. There © alghange in street
frontage from open-fronted gardens/parking spacesdre private enclosed
front gardens and driveways.

The dwellings along The Rake that lie within theservation area (Nos 2 to
22) are intermittently spaced in generous plot$ viaay from 6m to 19m in

width and 36m to 41m in depth. Some are set watkldrom the pavement
(eg Nos 20 and 22) while others are only 1m orvgaya This lends interest
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to the spatial relationships in this part of thes®rvation area and gives a
certain individuality to each of the properties.

(left) Nos 24-34 The Rake, viewed from south-éastutside the conservation area which
is demarcated by (right) the detached house at Ao 2

Zone 2

3.2.7 The Rake rises slightly as it moves eastwards aadlomestic garden walls

give way to the sandstone wall bordering the laardsind the Village Centre
and Church.

e

n o EE

|

Eastern end of The Rake, viewed from the The Village Centre and associated buildings
south-west, showing the change from viewed from the south-east

residential use to community use, denoted by

the long sandstone wall enclosing the village

centre and car park

3.2.8 The Church is set some way back from The Rake, dzkybe car park
serving the Village Centre. The churchyard is galhenot visible from afar,
being bordered by a number of mature trees, anc\vsaled only upon
entering through the Lych Gate. There is a madaurast in atmosphere

between the busy road and the green space aroarahtinch, which is quiet
and peaceful.
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The Church of St Barnabas, viewed frorWiew from churchyard south to the Lych
The Rake Gate, which marks the edge of the car park
to the Village Centre

Zone 3
3.2.9 At the eastern end of The Rake, the south-eastenercof the conservation

area is marked by Zecentury bank buildings, with the corner building
(HSBC bank) masked somewhat by mature trees.

Barclays Bank at Market Cross, which liesHSBC bank at the junction of Market Cross
at the eastern end of The Rake and Bromborough Village Road (No 58)

3.2.10 The west side of Bromborough Village Road is linedh commercial
buildings giving a denser, more urban, feel to #tose compared with the
more ‘village’ type atmosphere of The Rake. Thddmgs are a mix of
styles and from various periods although th&-26ntury Nos 36 to 46 are
excluded from the conservation area.

Views of Bromborough Village Road
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3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

3.34

3.3.5

VIEWS AND VISTAS

The westernmost parts 8romborough Village Conservation Area lie in a
slight dip in the landscape and the surrounding &egenerally flat. Long-
range views into the conservation area are oftestuwled by the built-up
nature of the approach roads.

Most of the views within the conservation area ghiert-range and may be
better described as ‘streetscapes’ with limitecfpoints.

The key landmark building is the Church of St Béae and its tower and
spire are visible from a number of vantage poimt$ bnside and outside the
conservation area.

Glimpses of the Church tower can be obtained freamyrpoints eg from High Street (left),
from near The Bromborough (centre) and from outdittss 36-46 Bromborough Village
Road (right)

However, there are no long-range views of the bafdye church and it can
best be appreciated from within the church grounds.

Views into the Conservation Area

View north east from The Rake
showing the Church tower in the
distance
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View from the junction of The Rake and
Allport Lane (west end) showing the
mature trees that contribute to the
character of the conservation area

The meandering route of The Rake
precludes long-range views and there
is no focal point until the market cross
becomes visible towards the
easternmost end

View into conservation area from the
raised walkway on the south side of The
Rake, showing the prominence of the
church tower and spire

View into the conservation area from
junction of Allport Lane (east end) and
The Rake showing the focal group of
buildings near the Church
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The Market Cross was historically an important flopaint within the village although it
lies outside the conservation area

3.3.6  Views out of the conservation area

3.3.7 The setting of the Conservation Area is dominatgdabvariety of mainly
Zdh-century development, the density of which prectulley views out to
the surrounding landscape.

3.4 GREEN SPACES AND PLANTING

3.4.1 Although the main area of green space within theseovation area is the
churchyard, the gardens of the domestic propertieske a valuable
contribution in providing greenery and interestvigy of shrubs, plants and
mature trees. The variety within the gardens alding Rake adds a
picturesque quality and acts as a counterpoinbeéadarmacadam around the
Village Centre, which is relieved by planters a tar park entrance. Along
Bromborough Village Road the mature trees in theepeent area add to the
character of this more urban part of the consesnadrea.

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 21



BROMBOROUGHV ILLAGE CONSERVATIONAREA APPRAISAL AND MANAGEMENT PLAN

3.4.2

3.4.3

The conservation area is characterised by a varadtplanting and mature trees, which
frame the buildings beyond

The extent and impact of the greenery around tliecbhis particularly well
illustrated by the aerial photograph below and shtvat the church and its
grounds occupy around half of the entire conservadrea.

Google Earth image showing the green areas arothecchurch

The variety of trees, shrubs and other plants withe churchyard lends it a
special atmospheric quality, particularly to theaa north of the Church. A
tomb tucked away in a corner, a glimpsed view o fhath leading to

Bromborough Village Road, a peek through denses ttreé¢he rectory garden
beyond, and areas where tombstones are being satidwyrundergrowth all

lend an interesting ‘secret garden’ atmospheré¢ochurchyard, in contrast
to the more formal architecture of the church.
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The zone around the Church is characterised by rietyaof planting and secluded areas

including a footpath providing a pedestrian linkifn the busy Bromborough Village Road to
the tranquillity of the churchyard

3.4.4 Along The Rake, there is a variety of planting agrden spaces within
privately owned gardens. Some houses are wellaszt from the pavement,

with space for car parking areas, whilst othersehaery small front gardens
with little scope for planting.

3.4.5 The boundaries to each garden are characteriskvigandstone walls with
triangular copings, sometimes surmounted by maedcthedges. The larger
gardens are generally enclosed, with only glimpdésrded to passers by.
The quality of planting and degree of maintenarexées between properties,
adding a variety to the character of the area,camtributing to the setting of
the buildings and the streetscape generally. Vielvsome houses are
particularly enhanced by mature trees and colowsfulibs nearby, whilst
others are unscreened from thd'2@ntury dwellings bordering the northern
part of the conservation area.

Some houses along the Rake are well-screened lfrenoad
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C20th development overlooking the
conservation area is only partially
screened from view along the access lane
between No 10 and No 12 The Rake

C20th commercial development intrudes on
the setting of Nos 8 t010 The Rake, which
have no front gardens

The C20th insertion of an access lane between NantiONo 12 The Rake has created an
unsightly gap in the streetscape and an interruptmthe planted up gardens
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4.0 TOWNSCAPE AND PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS
4.1 GRAIN, SCALE, REPETITION AND DIVERSITY

4.1.1 Although Bromborough Village Conservation Area @mmparatively small,
its grain is diverse and a legible story of itstdmie development. The
village grew up in the vicinity of the church, mgimlong The Rake to the
south (running west to east) and Bromborough \V@l&pad to the east
(running north to south). The dwellings were iirlyaregular rectangular
plots along these two roads.

Zone 1

4.1.2 The plots along The Rake contain houses of varsings, set back at varying
distances from the pavement, which are either Hethor semi-detached,
with some having been extended. The plots vamyidth from 6m to 19m
and in depth from 36m to 41m.

4.1.3 The houses are all two-storey and of modest heidtie form and style of
the detached house at No 22 clearly separatesronalogically from the
older neighbouring properties, yet enforces itsitwos as a prominent
building demarcating the edge of the conservatiea along the line of an
historic enclosure boundary.

4.1.4 The grain of the north side of The Rake has chatigsince the mid-18
century. Although some dwellings have been rebanitl extended, and
additional houses have been built in former garde¢he grain is still
reminiscent of a medieval village with its rectalagstrips of land cultivated
to support the cottagers living there. Beyonddbeservation area boundary
to the north, however, the former field boundarmes difficult to discern
within the 20" century residential development.

Zone 3

4.1.5 The grain of Bromborough Village Road is much densih little or no
space between the buildings that line the paveméhey vary in form from
single storey (No 58, HSBC bank) to 2% storeys (Bb%6), although there
are only minor variations in ridge height. Theséldings are generally
larger in scale than those along The Rake and thexgch a diverse range of
building types that there is no repetition.

4.1.6 The dense grain of the street is interrupted by B@<i6 (Bromborough
Paints) and the car parking area to its south; kiewehese lie outside the
conservation area.

Zone 2

4.1.7 The northern zone of the conservation area is aedupy the church,
churchyard, Village Centre and Church Institute.hede buildings are
necessarily larger in scale, reflecting their comityuuse.
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4.1.8

4.1.9

4.1.10

Along the eastern edge, behind Nos 36-46 Brombdrdlilage Road, lies
the secluded Church House and Church Cottage, veaictonly be glimpsed
from a distance but appear to be of a traditiooaht

ST o P ENRR = g = =

Views along Church Lane towards the secluded Chtimhse and Church Cottage

Although the scale of buildings within the consé¢iaa area varies from zone
to zone, the grouping together of buildings of samsize contributes to the
character of the conservation area and gives ainehbmogeneity to an
otherwise diverse range of buildings.

Outside the conservation area, the dense grairlpbr Lane at its junction
with The Rake reflects its historical importancepast of the core of the
village, centred around the market square and crassgely hidden from
view behind the 20 century NatWest bank buildings and the former Roya
Oak public house is a group of much older buildingkich may be those
shown on the 1840 tithe map or the earlier estap wf c1755 (fuller
investigation of these properties, beyond the sodpleis appraisal, would be
necessary to determine this).

These buildings behind the NatWest bank and forRmyal Oak public house may be
remnants of the agricultural properties that stamdthis site
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4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS AND FEATURES

Although long-range views of the Church are limiteaight of its tower and
spire, and views of other buildings are generaligrsrange, there are a
number of notable historic buildings within the servation area.

= Church of St Barnabas
= Village Centre (formerly the School)

*» The Master's House

= Nos 54/56/56A Bromborough Village Road (formerlidés Farmhouse)
» Pear Tree Cottage (No 6 The Rake)

Other historic features include:

= Church Cross (probably TOcentury, re-erected by The Bromborough
Society 1958)

= Sundial (dated 1730)

= A number of early-18 century gravestones echoing the style of the Ghurc
Cross

Buildings and features that are not listed but Haseoric interest in terms of
the development of the village and which contribatehe character of the
area include:

Church Institute

Nos 8-10 The Rake (date stone showing 1835)

Nos 16-18 The Rake (two dwellings, date stone shgpuB836)

No 20 The Rake (a single dwelling with a date stohd815, possibly

formerly a pair of cottages)

= Nos 2-4 and Nos 12-14 (built between 1899 and Hoiltypical of early
Edwardian semi-detached cottages, the only ‘reypetiteature along The
Rake)

= Nos 18 and 26-28 Bromborough Village Road, whiginfa group. No 18

was formerly used as the Mission Hall/Lecture ldalll Reading Room

The omission of the market cross from the consEmwadrea, together with
the buildings to the rear of the NatWest bank bagdon Allport Lane (see
4.1.10 above) does not preclude their historicr@ste nor their potential
contribution to the character of the conservati@aa

Similarly, the buildings to the north of the consdiron area along
Bromborough Village Road contribute to its characiehe Bromborough
public house, though much altered over its lifetimgually punctuates the
streetscape and marks the transition from Stanhédpese to the more
commercial areas of Bromborough.

The Rectory and its large gardens to the northefconservation area affect
the setting of and contribute to the charactehefdonservation area, acting
as a buffer between the historic parts of the gdlaand the peripheral
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housing developments. The Rectory grounds areosedlby a long brick
and sandstone wall together with mature trees ngnaliong the south side of
Mark Rake, complemented by the grade Il listed IStpe House at its
eastern end.

Entrance to the Rectory (left) and the long bougdaall beyond running westwards (right)

b TR

View of Rectory from Mark Rake (left) and Stanhidpase, Mark Rake (right)

4.3 BOUNDARIES AND SURFACES

4.3.1 Roads surfaces and pavements are generally excftmladthe boundary of
the conservation area, apart from the large cd gad service areas at the
Village Centre, which are surfaced with tarmacadam.

4.3.2 Pathways within the conservation area vary fronsgrand concrete in the
churchyard to the untreated surface of the pathin@y the churchyard to
Bromborough Village Road. Generally the surfacethe pathways are in
poor condition.

4.3.3 Bordering the conservation area, the pavements anéx of concrete slabs
and tarmacadam, and there is no evidence of histiface treatments
remaining in situ. In places the condition of {h@ements is very poor,
particularly where there is a mix of materials wita short distance.
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(left) The concrete pathways within the churchyard in need of repair or replacement
and do not enhance the setting of the church. gdtaways turn to grass towards the
northern end of the churchyard, making them unimgiend potentially dangerous in wet
weather (right).

The block paved drive within the conservation abeaindary contrasts with the broken
flags at its entrance; to the left the pavemensusfaced with tarmacadam, to the right
there are mixed paving slabs.
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An early C20th inserted access lane between Noanti012 is surfaced with loose

gravel but the border treatment does not enhana ghtting of the adjacent
dwellings

4.3.4 Private driveways within the conservation areasamgéaced with a variety of
materials including paviors, gravel, stone and taradam. Whilst this adds

variety to the area, the treatment of the pavemahtgting them detracts
from their appearance.

4.3.5 Most boundary walls are of the local red sandsteitk triangular copings
and are a defining feature of the conservation.amaundary walls to the

dwellings along The Rake are generally sandstoimesame have a hedge
planted immediately behind.

4.3.6 However, there are noticeable differences betweepepties in the quality of
construction of boundary walls and particularlyheir pointing.

Different treatments of sandstone walls to neighinguproperties
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The red sandstone wall enclosing the grounds o¥ill@ge Centre along The Rake

4.3.7 Around the church, there is a mix of boundary trestits. To the north, east
and south the boundary walls are of sandstone wgthahe walls are
obscured in places by vegetation, mature treegeanekstones.

The panel fence that runs along the western sideethurchyard marking the conservation
area boundary
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A mix of panel fencing, sandstone wall and postaildfiencing marks the southern
boundary of the churchyard
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5.0

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

ARCHITECTURE , MATERIALS AND DETAILS
PROMINENT STYLES

The houses within Bromborough Village Conservathkmea are generally
simply designed and detailed vernacular buildingh \ater alterations.

The public buildings are identifiable as late"i@®ntury Gothic and Tudor
revival.

The church is in the ‘Early English Style’ which svauch revived in the 19
century and is typified by the use of lancets @arpointed arches, often
grouped in twos and threes), vaulted stone roofgtrdsses with plain,
steeply pitched gablets, cusped arches to deceratoades, circles enclosing
trefoils/quatrefoils in the tracery, large rose s, and decorative foliage.
Many of these features were incorporated into ther€h of St Barnabas.

Typical ‘Early English’ details: paired lancets heath a large rose window (top left);
blind arcading (top right); a buttress to the apsiceast end (bottom left); and a typical
window with paired lancets, cusped plate tracerg atustered shafts (bottom right)
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5.1.4 The Village Centre (former school) was completed1B69 in a Gothic
revival style, re-using materials from the farmstéaat previously occupied
the site. Although the Church Institute was bmilich later, in 1908, and is
different in style and detailing, it complements #irchitecture of the former
school. The Church Institute is typical of manyldings in Cheshire (to
which Bromborough belonged in the™8entury) where local red sandstone
is combined with mock timber-framing to produceistidctive Tudor revival
style.

5.2 KNOWN ARCHITECTS AND DESIGNERS

5.2.1 The present Church was designed by Sir George Githeott in 1862-4,
with the broached spire added in 1880. Most gladsyi Clayton and Bell,
c1870 although the east window was designed in 186Ballantine and
Son. No further information has been identifiedstagest other buildings
were designed by known architects.

5.3 TYPICAL FEATURES AND DETAILS

5.3.1 Windows: Part of the character of a building is derivemhfrthe form of its
windows. Differences in shape, style, materiald gfazing can strongly
influence the appeal and aesthetic qualities ofiilding. Detailing carried
through a number of properties enhances the clearaét and provides
cohesion to, an area.

5.3.2 Regrettably a large number of historic windows haeen replaced within
the conservation area, although information ashéir toriginal form can be
gleaned from the structural window openings thatai@.

5.3.3 Fairly small, rectangular openings that are widsant they are tall were
generally favoured in cottages of thé"iahd early 18 centuries, where they
would be unglazed and covered with waxed linen foinmse draughts.
Such openings appear in a number of the cottageg dlhe Rake (Nos 6, 8,
10 and 20); the IBcentury date stones may mark a period of rebugldin
rather than the original date of construction amer¢ is map evidence to
suggest that No 20, for example, may date fromntice18" century rather
than 1815 as per its date stone.

Small rectangular openings at Nos 8, 10 and 20 Rake (unfortunately fitted with
replacement windows)
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No 6 The Rake (listed grade II):- (left) to the teglgvation of the original cottage are
4-light single chamfered mullioned windows (extehd¢ some point), those to the
west are single-lights (centre). The windows ® ¢ltension are later, being 8-light
fixed windows (right). The upper window is prohaldontemporary with the
extension but the lower window is a later replacetne

5.3.4 From the later 18 century, window openings became larger with the
emphasis on the vertical, and there are numeroasngbes within the
conservation area of this type of opening. Thedews themselves were
treated in different ways, from the delicate two@aliding sash to the heavy
mullions and transoms of the Gothic revival.

Larger, vertical openings at Nos 2, 4,
12 and 14 The Rake with canted bay
windows on corbels to the ground
floor, typical of the late C19th/early
C20th The original windows would
have been two pane double-hung
sashes with horns, though regrettably
none remain.

Nos 16 and 18 have been much altered
and extended over their lifetimes,
illustrated by the unusual variety of
window types and openings (see
examples below). Although each
window is different, they are of an
historic form and enhance the
character of the cottage.
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-

y S

(top left) modern wooden-framed 12-pane casemargguare opening; (top right modern
wooden-framed 9-pane casements; (bottom left) &s¥ime (horizontal sliding) sash in a
square opening; (bottom right) 16-pane double hsagh with horns, in an altered opening
(possibly the original doorway and contemporaryhwtie later C19th extension to the left)

5.3.5 Along Bromborough Village Road, a great varietyvohdow types can be
seen. Although replacement uPVC windows are peexah number of them
are fitted to the original window openings whicloghthe development from
the small, horizontal windows of thetﬁéentury and early 1%entury to the
larger, vertical windows of the later i&entury and 19 century (eg at Nos
54-56 and at Nos 26-28).

-

(left) Nos 54-56 Bromborough Village Road, C17tmdew to dormer; (centre) No 26,
square mid-C18th window opening with modern topligtight) Nos 54-56, C19th 12-pane
double hung sash

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 36



BROMBOROUGHV ILLAGE CONSERVATIONAREA APPRAISAL AND MANAGEMENT PLAN

The distinctive 18-century Gothic revival
windows at 18 Bromborough Village Road
have heavy, painted stone, chamfered
mullions and transoms with a shallow
arched head and carved finials to heavy
hood moulds, set with wooden-framed lights.

The late C19th Tudor revival window at 52
Bromborough Village Road: window has
replacement glass to lower section

5.3.6 The windows in the public buildings such as therchwand village centre are
suggestive of the 19-century revival of the ‘Early English’ style, arde
contemporary with the date of construction.

Village Centre windows have lancet openings
with shouldered lintels, chamfered sandstone
mullions with 8-light windows, and are
arranged in groups of two, three or four.
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5.3.7

5.3.8

5.3.9

The windows to the Church Institute and Master'susto are typical later
C19th Tudor revival windows designed to mimic thellons and transoms
of C16th windows.

(left) The Master's House (centre, right) the Chutastitute

Doors: Doors and door openings are generally plain aranamented and
are not a particular defining feature of buildingghe conservation area. A
few have plank doors with strap hinges (eg Villagentre and Master's
House) but generally there are no typical styled tontribute to the area’s
character. The vast majority of doors have bepraced by more modern
styles, either in white uPVC or painted wood. dttherefore difficult to
determine the historic form of the doors that wob&le characterised the
area in the past. A few houses have a small caonopy the doorway,
generally roofed with tiles supported by decorativackets, to afford some
protection from the elements. Some of these agiat.

Doorways to dwellings along The Rake

Chimneys: Most of the chimneys are of a plain, simple rewtir design,
although some have oversailing courses. They anerglly built of brick
(some rendered and painted) and surmounted wiytpcies, but the style and
colour of pots can vary within the same stack. iS#gtached dwellings
share a central stack of up to eight flues, pagsiraugh the ridge. Detached
dwellings have gable end stacks, either in theegadalll or projecting from it
from ground floor level. One stack to the Churobtitute, however, is of
sandstone ashlar and is positioned at the junaidwo roof slopes, in an
‘Arts and Crafts’ manner. The remains of the statks2 Bromborough
Village Road show the use of tumbling-in brickwoik chimney
construction. The gable end stack to 18 Brombdroditjage Road is of an
unusual shape although probably constructed ussngiéar technique.
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5.3.10

5.3.11

Examples of different chimney types within the eoraion area

Roof details: buildings within the conservation area display eneariety in
roofs than in chimney types. The cottages tertthte fairly shallow-pitched
roofs of slate or tile, although some may have bibatched originally as
elsewhere in Wirral. Earlier cottages have stoopings to flush verges,
whilst buildings of the late f%early 20" century sometimes have
overhanging verges. Ridges generally run paralléhée front of the building
and some have clay ridge tiles.

The roofs to the commercial premises have moreingupitches, from the

flat roof of Barclays Bank (at Market Cross) to there steeply pitched roof
of Nos 54-56 Bromborough Village Road. Some buaidi have the ridge at
right angles to the street with the gable beingg@méed to the street. The
only Listed commercial building (Nos 54-56) has lgdbdormers with stone

copings and kneelers, together with overhangingeg®ae the main roof

slopes.

Nos 54-56 Bromborough Village Road

Donald Insall Associates Ltd Page 39



BROMBOROUGHV ILLAGE CONSERVATIONAREA APPRAISAL AND MANAGEMENT PLAN

5.3.12 The public buildings have more complex roof linesessitated by their plan
form, and add a pleasing variety to the roofscapth® conservation area.
For example, the Master's House has projectingimmurbn corbels, with
overhanging eaves and verges, decorative bargebuoatid finials, a gabled
dormer and terracotta ridge tiles.

Roof details of dwellingslong The Rake
earlier buildings (above) have stone coping
flush verges; later buildings (left) ha
overhanging verges and projecting purlins

The Master's House (left) and Church Institute: thorlevation (centre) and West
elevation (right)

Gable end fronting the street at No 28 (left) ahd flat-roof to Barclays Bank at Market
Cross (right)

5.3.13 Date stonesare found on a number of buildings. Some cleawdyk the date
of, and are contemporary with, the building’s camstion, such as that on
the school (now Village Centre). On the dwellingse date stone might
relate to the date of construction but it was qudaexmon for date stones to
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5.3.14

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

commemorate a rebuilding or an important event agla marriage. The
newest dwelling within the conservation area, Np @htinues the tradition
with a date stone of 1994 marking its constructidie oldest date stone is
that at No 56 Bromborough Village Road (formerlylldés Farmhouse),
which reads “TIE 1683".

The presence of external render, replacement eoafghe insertion of uPVvVC
windows can obscure the legibility of a buildinghere is map evidence to
suggest some properties may have been built ednigar their date stones
imply (eg No 20 The Rake) and only an internal en might offer clues
to the history of such buildings.

M ATERIALS

Throughout the Conservation Area a varied paldtigoaostruction materials
has been used and no single material is partiguvminant. The most
common materials are:

Facades:
= Exposed red sandstone masonry
= Brickwork

= Render or white wash
= ‘Mock’ timber framed upper storeys and dormers wéhdered or painted
stone/brick panels.

Roofs:

= Welsh slate

= Terracotta ridge tiles
= Stone verges

The domestic properties are built of common briclsandstone rubble, or a
combination of both. Some dwellings have rendered painted elevations
(generally white), sometimes with mock timber frami

Traditionally, cottages built of rubblestone woudd painted with a single
coat of lime render, which would effectively resdenla very full flush

pointing with some stone faces revealed. Moretjgiesis houses may be
rendered with further coats to achieve a smootinshf or have a final coat
of rough-cast (a lime mortar slurry containing s@agrit). The removal of
lime render, or its replacement with a cement-basader, can often lead to
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5.4.4

5.4.5

5.4.6

5.4.7

5.4.8

5.4.9

5.4.10

5.4.11

water penetration problems and render breaking drway the wall, as at No
6 The Rake and 28 Bromborough Village Road.

The public buildings are primarily of coursed ampiaed sandstone, with
terracotta and/or brick detailing.

The commercial buildings are constructed of the esamariety of materials
found elsewhere in the conservation area, althdboghuse of Portland stone
at Barclays Bank is out of character with the covesgon area.

Public realm fittings within and bordering on thenservation area boundary
are entirely modern, although generally unobtrusivowever, the surface
treatments in the area around the market crositidgotd enhance the setting
of the conservation area.

Brick: The brick used is generally common Cheshirekbmdth some hard
red pressed brick used for detailing such as araindow openings.

Terracotta: Terracotta details are found on some buildingthiw the
conservation area, such as the drip-moulding amndetiong on the Master’s
House, but is not a particularly prevalent feature.

Sandstone The local red Triassic sandstone is coursedsauéred when
used on the public buildings, but domestic buildireye constructed of
rubblestone.

Wood: A few buildings within the conservation area @awock timber
framing, which is used for decorative effect rattiem being a constructional
necessity. These buildings tend to date from aker 118" century, when the
Tudor revival in nearby Chester was in full swing.

Slate Roofs would historically have been of slatehailigh it is possible
some of the earlier cottages with shallow pitcheafs may have originally
been thatched, as elsewhere in Wirral. Today, kewewhilst many
buildings have retained their slates, a few have iegplacement roofs in
unsympathetic interlocking profiled tiles.
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6.0

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

NEGATIVE FACTORS
OVERVIEW

A study of this nature cannot attempt to highligliery element of the built
environment that has a detrimental impact on treatier or setting of the
conservation area. Instead, this report summatisemost visually evident
examples and identifies key issues to encourageuraterstanding and
awareness of the challenges.

Appended to this document is a plan showing thérdmrion of buildings to
the character of the conservation area. The pks produced as a tool for
understanding the significance of different paftBmmborough Village and
to inform as to the appropriateness of the conservarea boundary. Each
building, or group of buildings, is categoriseda@ws:

A: (Red) Buildings that areritical to the character of the conservation
area — typically these may be landmark buildingd/@nbuildings
with most of their original character retained

B: (Yellow) Buildings that make positive contribution to the character
of the conservation area — buildings may have saltegations but
their original character is still prominent

C: (Green) Buildings that havenautral contribution to the character of
the conservation area — they neither enhance rtaactidrom the
character or appearance of the conservation areanight have
potential for enhancement

D: (Blue) — Buildings where the extent of intrusion damage is so
great that their appearance detracts from thefgignce or special
character of the area and their impactagative

RECENT DEVELOPMENT

The 2" century has seen a significant amount of developnia
Bromborough Village, as groups of buildings haverbe&lemolished and
replaced, and pressure for new housing has ldukettoss of green space and
open land around the village. Within the conseovaarea, a few buildings
have been demolished and replaced with-@ntury alternatives.

The late 19/early 2" century buildings along The Rake contribute to the
character of the conservation area; the pairs mi-gdetached dwellings are
reminiscent of the cottages that formerly lined soaith side of The Rake
(demolished 1930s?).

The single ‘new build’” along the north side of TRake is clearly modern
but has been designed with some vernacular detiadls as terracotta ridge
tiles, slate roofs, a square chimney stack, catiehves, sandstone cills and
appropriately sized window openings. However, wlege in the
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conservation area, painted render tends to coventire elevation and be in
more muted colours.

22 The Rake: a late C20th house generally symgatttethe character of the conservation
area

6.2.4 The Barclays Bank building at Market Cross is legmpathetic to the
character of the conservation area, being clacomidghd stone and having a
flat roof. However, this appears to be a remodgliand extension of the
brick and slated gabled building (Roberts Garala) it replaced as there is
evidence of historic brickwork to the ground fladrthe rear of the building.

i1 i Hl |!|!

i

6.2.5 The biggest change to Bromborough Village has bemught about by
developmenbutsidethe conservation area, which immediately impaptsnu
its setting and restricts views out of the constonaarea.

6.2.6 The south side of The Rake has seen the loss dfinlygeand gardens, and
now accommodates a shopping centre and assocatarking that directly
affect the setting of the cottages on the north sidThe Rake.
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Views of the south side of The Rake: shopping edtup left); car park (top right); the or
remaining short terrace of cottages at Nos 7 to(B8ttom left), and the proximity of tl
shopping centre to the conservation area (bottaghtji

6.2.7 The development of part of the open space arouma@hhrch has resulted in
the churchyard being overlooked by modern housinthé north, west and
south-west.

View out of the conservation area from th®iew out of the conservation area from the
churchyard to the houses on Mark Rakehurchyard to the houses on Athelstan Close
(south side) (south side)

6.2.8 Slightly further north and west of the conservatamea, new houses were
built to accommodate the increasing populationdamentally changing the
setting of the conservation area from a rural g@l@ao a suburban settlement.
These houses are typical of many inter-war and -wast housing
developments elsewhere in the country; their deaigh construction is not
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6.2.9

6.2.10

rooted in a strong local tradition and they areeuamarkable in appearance.
Views out of the conservation area are now no lon§a rural character.

Inter-war houses along the south side of Mark Rakewed from north; the detached
house (left) borders the grounds to the Rectory

Along Bromborough Village Road, the immediate proity of Nos 36 to 46
to the conservation area has an impact on itsngettiThe building is
anonymous, brick-built, and flat-roofed with a larglass ‘shop front’
relieved by cream mosaic tiles and white paintetbér window frames. Itis
disproportionately scaled in the context of the eotlbuildings along
Bromborough Village Road although its height is rappiate and it is
obscured slightly by large trees.

Nos 36-46 Bromborough Village Road viewed frommedst: the southern section (left)
has a largely glass frontage and the northern sec(right) is predominantly of brick

The setting of the conservation area is particylaffected by development
around the area of the Market Cross. Manor HowsenFon Allport Lane
was demolished in 1928 and replaced by Irwin’s @p&hop. Other shops
were built along Allport Lane, where previously riadnad been cottages and
orchards. These buildings mark an important dgreknt for the setting of
the market cross as the open square became inmgyasuilt up.
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Shops on the west side of Allport Lane (left) hetlee site of Manor House Farm; the shops
on the east side (right) had interesting art detavations when built in the 1930s but have
since been unified under a plain single roofline

6.2.11 The design of the NatWest building at the junctainMarket Cross and

6.3

6.3.1

Allport Lane pays homage to the sweet shop, la@kpthat formerly stood
on the corner and has typical 1920s ‘stripped’sitad detailing. The later
extension to the south has adversely affected @ssmg and it now appears
slightly ungainly.

—

NatWest Bank on the corner of Market Cross andofflpane (left) with a further extension
built to the south (right)

UNSYMPATHETIC ALTERATIONS

Although few of the buildings within the consereatiarea are listed, most
are historic in form and construction. Many ofdbérave been altered and
some of these changes are detrimental to the ectinitll character of the

building. This then adversely affects the quaditg character of the area as
a whole. Examples of such changes include:

= Replacing original windows with unsuitable moderesigns and
materials such as uPVC

= Replacement of original roofing materials with utednie alternatives,
such as profiled interlocking tiles instead ofeslat

=  The insertion of new, or alteration to existingenimgs that affect the
aesthetic appeal and proportions of a building

=  Poor quality repairs, such as cement based poisfigading over the
face of stone or brick.

= Rendering over originally exposed brick/stone witisuitable cement-
based render
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6.3.2

6.3.3

6.3.4

Windows, along with roofs, are the most commonlglaeed elements in
buildings. They are the most vulnerable to detation and changes in
popular taste have influenced the loss of origim@éhdows in historic
buildings. In today’s climate, with increasinglyisgent building regulations
in force, building owners may consider it more exoit to opt for off-the-
shelf double/triple glazed uPVC windows than to oussion bespoke
replacements in the spirit of the original.

The most prominent alteration to historic fabri¢ghin the conservation area
is the replacement of original windows. Althougiede alterations may be
well intentionedeg to improve thermal or acoustic performance orettuce
maintenance requirements, the visual effect canadanthe authenticity of
the building’s original design.

In some cases an attempt has been made to emiatiertm of original
windows but with limited success. Two-light windewvould have held
either small-paned casements or a Yorkshire sasim (@ottages to the south
side of The Rake, now demolished). Three-light deins were also
common, with a central side-hung casement.  Tamihg elements of a
modern, double-glazed uPVC window are by necessitgh thicker and
differently proportioned to the slim profiles ofettoriginals, and can detract
from the true character of the building. The regunation of opening panes
can also change the architectural character of idibg as can the
inappropriate addition of cills.

No 16 The Rake: Replacement uPVC two-
light windows with single side-hung
casements and imitation diamond-shaped
leading. The upper window is almost flush
with the wall face, instead of being recessed
in the same way as the earlier windows to
No 18 adjoining. The inserted timber reveal
to the lower window stands proud of the
wall face and is totally out of context.

No 20 The Rake: The outer lights have side-
hung casements and the central one a small
top-hung casement, a feature alien to the
original form of such cottage windows.

Each light has imitation glazing bars
sandwiched between the panes of glass. If
the window openings are original, they
would have most likely contained a three-
light window with a central side-hung
casement. The cluttered design of these
windows does little to preserve or enhance
the character of the building.
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6.3.5

Bromborough Village Road.

No 26 Bromborough Village Road:
although the lights are appropriately
sized, the square window openings now
contain top hung casements, which are
out of character

No 28 Bromborough Village Road: the

openings originally would have been

fitted with sliding sash windows, probably

8 panes over 8 and although an attempt
has been made to emulate the historic
glazing pattern, the use of uPVC top-

hung casements has resulted in windows
with ungainly proportions

No 6 The Rake: A wooden replacement
window in the spirit of the original but
with a protruding cill and an extractor
fan inappropriately placed. Its slightly
awkward appearance suggests the
original window may have had 12 panes
rather than 8.

The enlargement of door and window openings, andeatrimental effect on

the character of a building, can be seen partilguédrthe HSBC bank at 58
It was constructed ia 940s to replace an
earlier temporary wooden structure and it madesitige contribution to the

street scape around the market cross. The subsegsertion of plate glass
doors and windows has significantly altered itsrabger.
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o

R
58 Bromborough Village Road: unsympathetic alters are illustrated by comparison
with a photograph from the 1950s

6.3.6 Most doors within the conservation area have bediest to replacement,
with the exception of the public buildings. As lwivindows, many of them
have been replaced with uPVC alternatives, inctersisvith the character of
the originals.

6.3.7 Within the conservation area, roof replacementdeaerally been carried out
sympathetically using traditional slates and rides. However, notable
exceptions to this include the"-gentury former Tellet's Farm at Nos 54-56
Bromborough Village Road. Now in shared ownersliips building has
been partially reroofed with profiled interlockitites, which do not preserve
or enhance its character and emphasise the spldfithe former farmhouse
into two properties. Similarly, the roof to No 6as been much altered; the
building has lost its projecting gable ends andphailed interlocking tile
roof is alien to its original character.

No 52 Bromborough Village Road: The north elevafieft) illustrates the loss of the east
and west projecting gables and chimney shown 1920s photograph (right). (Note the
open space beyond the building is the site of 38#8nborough Village Road)
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Nos 54/54a Bromborough Village Road demonstratesliffierence in appearance between
a slate roof (right) and modern interlocking prefil tiles (left)

6.3.8 The conversion of the former Tellet’'s farm househops in the first half of
the 20" century appears to have been carried out withouthnradical
alteration to the original fabric. However, subsenf alterations have been
more intrusive and the building’s legibility as arrher, fairly substantial,
farmhouse has been considerably diluted. SimijlaHg conversion to a
laundrette of the neighbouring building, once adsame Tudor revival
house, has been less than successful and unsympdthéhe character of
the original building.

Nos 52-56 Bromborough Village Road: the
early C20th conversion of the former
Tellet's Farmhouse to a chandler's shop
was sympathetic to the character of the
building (top left), as was its division into
two by the 1950s (top right).

Subsequent alterations to Tellet's farm, the
adjacent No 52 (now Laundrette) and to the
public realm have had a more significant
impact (left)

6.3.9 The character of older dwellings can be affectedneyinsertion of modern
services installations. Unsympathetic rainwateodgoor visible external
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6.4

6.4.1

6.5

6.5.1

pipe work not only impact upon the simple aestlsetita rural cottage but
can also affect the structural integrity of thelting if poorly managed.

Intrusive waste pipes and rainwater goods More considered placement of the rainwater
downpipe, satellite dish and burglar alarm
would improve the aesthetic appeal of this
cottage

UNSYMPATHETIC EXTENSIONS

There are few recent extensions of any significaize to residential

buildings within the conservation area; they teadé outshuts to the rear
and do not impact upon the streetscape signifigzan8uch extensions are
generally well sited and do not confuse or detitaeh the simple form of the

vernacular buildings.

CONDITION , L 0SS ANDDEVELOPMENT PRESSURES

Whilst most buildings appear to be reasonably wadintained and fully
occupied, there are some buildings that appear ruseé or in poor
condition. Nos 32-34 Bromborough Village Road apein good order
from the street, but viewed from the path to tharchyard it is clearly in
need of some care.

[

The rear of Nos 32-34 Bromborough Village Roadaitmgside the pathway to the church
and is in need of some improvement
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6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.5.5

6.6

6.6.1

Similarly, buildings such as Tellet's Farmhouse ¢Ns6-56 Bromborough
Village Road) are in need of repair and maintenamnoeks, as well as a
considered approach to how best to secure theiurefuand preserve or
enhance their character.

There has been a great deal of physical and sdséige in Bromborough
Village particularly from the early 30 century onwards. The most
significant changes within the current conservatasea boundary are as
follows:

The construction of 22 The Rake

Building of the Church Institute

Demolition of the Smithy and Smithy Cottage

Infill development along Bromborough Village Road

Conversion of Tellet's Farmhouse (later renamega@ktl House) into a
shop, and demolition of the associated farm bugislin

Closure of the school and re-opening the buildstha Village Centre
Construction of the Barclays Bank building at thess

Alterations to the HSBC bank building

Construction of a new village hall to the rearhd Village Centre

At present there seems to be little developmentssure within the

Bromborough Village Conservation Area; indeed, &ofCH20 in the UDP

specifically prohibits infill development betweero!® and No 22 The Rake
and there are no gap sites along Bromborough \éllggad that might be
developed.

However, commercial pressures have meant shopsfinte been changed
and corporate signage installed, rarely sympathetibe character or setting
of the conservation area.

CHANGES TO PuBLIC REALM AND OPEN SPACE

Although the construction of the by-pass has untidlp alleviated traffic
pressures on the village, there is still a reld#iviigh volume of traffic using
Bromborough Village Road and The Rake. The asttigublic realm
including traffic signage, road markings and peti@stamenities, notably
around the market cross, does little to preservenbance the setting of the
conservation area or the buildings within it. Téweclusion of the listed
market cross from the conservation area may hadleahaadverse effect on
subsequent public realm works; the siting of thessron what is effectively a
pedestrian refuge detracts from its importancealig@and historically.
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6.6.2

6.6.3
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An old painting indicates the extent to which theaaaround the cross, formerly a large
market ‘square’, has been developed. (image ceyi®nb Fraser)

The Market Cross today sits on a pedestrian refaghe middle of a busy thoroughfare

A notable change to the public realm that has hdetamental impact on the
character of the conservation area is the lossuafemous sandstone walls,
both within and without the conservation area. pertes along
Bromborough Village Road that once had small frgatdens behind low
sandstone walls now sit at the back of a widene@mpant. The conversion
of the road into a predominantly commercial stieet underlain this change
of character.

The largest open space within the village is timel laround the church. As
noted above (6.2.7), part of this space was giwamn to new housing which
is visible from within the churchyard and affectset setting of the

conservation area.
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6.6.4

6.6.5

6.7

6.7.1

Bromborough Village Road before it was widened semldstone walls demolished

Signage on some buildings within the conservati@a & inappropriate and
detracts from its character. This is most notiteaddlong Bromborough
Village Road.

The setting of the conservation area, particularbund the market cross, is
also affected by signage on nearby shops partlguldrere it is illuminated.
A notable example is the illuminated signage toftmener Royal Oak public
house, now housing an estate agent, near the Markes.
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Subtle signage can enhance the setting of the ooatgen area. Along Allport Road, Nos 3
to 5 (left) for example have pleasantly designedpsfronts and appropriate signage,
whereas the illuminated signage to the former Ra@ak (No 60 Bromborough Village
Road, (right) is insistently bright and overly eapicuous.

CHANGES TO THE SETTING OF THE CONSERVATION AREA

Immediately outside the conservation area, the maginificant
developments that have impacted on its setting are:

= The building of the by-pass and demolition of Bramdugh Hall and
White Row Cottages, with the subsequent loss of lting sandstone
boundary wall (see image at 6.6.1) on the east sfdBromborough
Village Road

= Conversion of the former Royal Oak into a shop, aédon of the
adjacent shop and expansion of the bank premises

= Demolition of Manor House Farm and constructiorntred Allport Lane
shops
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= Building of new housing along the south side of TRake, and the
subsequent demolition of a number of them to madg for a shopping
centre

= Guardrails along the south side of the Rake

= A new Rectory and new housing along Mark Rake

= Demolition of buildings along the west side of Blmonough Village Road
and their replacement with Nos 36-46

= Construction of the A41 New Chester Road by-passgd dhe
industrial/commercial units alongside it.

6.7.2 The overall effect of these developments is thatftinmerly rural village has
been subsumed within an urban conurbation and views of the
conservation area are no longer of a rural chardcteinclude views of the
rears of dwellings with loft conversions.

View looking west along The Rake near its
junction with Allport Lane (western end)

View from the churchyard to the houses dtiew from the pathway leading from the

Athelstan Close built on former open fields churchyard onto Bromborough Village
Road showing proximity of busy
thoroughfare and modern commercial
premises, where formerly the sandstone
boundary wall of the Bromborough Hall
estate stood
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The setting of the southern section of the consienrvarea is affected by a large shopping
centre

The setting to the east of the conservation ares ¢tzanged considerably following the
demolition of Bromborough Hall and the developmeft the estate grounds for
commercial/residential use.

(left) northern junction of Bromborough Village Rbwith New Chester Road (A41), viewed
from north west

(right) the commercial area between BromborougHagé Road and New Chester Road
(A41), viewed from the north west

6.7.3  Whilst conservation of the special character ofrBiborough Village has to
be a major consideration, controlled and positiaagement of change will
allow the area to continue to prosper whilst respgcits special
architectural and historic interest. Any opportyiid preserve or enhance its
character can be positively encouraged through aauc and awareness
without the need for over-prescriptive controls aestrictions on businesses
and residents.
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7.0

7.1

SIMMARY OF SPECIAL CHARACTER

The special character of Bromborough Villageng&ovation Area derives
from:

The form of the medieval settlement, which wasrmegharound the church
and market cross, and can be discerned from thaimsnof the historic
core. Itis a formerly rural village now enclosedn urban conurbation

A variety of vernacular residential buildings alofge Rake

The eclecticism of buildings along Bromborough &6 Road now in
commercial use and with a denser and more urbaactka

Despite differences in scale from zone to zonaytbaping of buildings of
similar size gives some homogeneity to an otherwliserse range of
buildings

The church, designed by a renowned™téntury architect, and the
associated public buildings around a ‘square’bitsached spire being a
key landmark both inside and outside the consenvatiea

The grounds around the church and the site ofdheaedr Saxon church
with a variety of trees and shrubs lending it anaapheric quality

The variety of experiences within a small geogragnea, from the quiet
solitude of the churchyard to the busy commerciakaa along
Bromborough Village Road

The use of local, traditional building materialstjgalarly the local red
sandstone

Boundary walls of local red sandstone with triaaguopings along The
Rake
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